ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 30, 2004
1:10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lesil MGQuire, Chair
Representati ve Tom Anderson, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Jim Hol m
Representati ve Dan Ogg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 348
"An Act relating to the rights of certain victins of crine to
receive informati on about the office of victins' rights."

- MOVED CSHB 348(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 398
"An Act relating to donmestic violence fatality review teans.”

- MOVED CSHB 398(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 357
"An Act relating to restitution; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CsSHB 357(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 397
"An Act relating to defense contacts with and recordings of
statenents of victinms or wtnesses; and anending Rule 16, Al aska
Rul es of Crimnal Procedure.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 334
"An Act relating to unlawmful exploitation of a mnor."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 30, 2004



- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 348

SHORT TI TLE: NOTI CE RE OFFI CE OF VI CTI M5 RI GHTS

SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( s) STOLTZE, DAHLSTROM SAMUELS,

MCGUI RE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 12/ 04 2287 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 2287 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 2287 (H JUD

01/ 12/ 04 2287 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

01/ 26/ 04 (H JUD AT 2: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 26/ 04 (H Heard & Held

01/ 26/ 04 (H M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 30/ 04 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 398

SHORT TI TLE: DOVESTI C VI OLENCE FATALI TY REVI EW TEAM

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 23/ 04

01/ 23/ 04
01/ 23/ 04
01/ 26/ 04
01/ 26/ 04
01/ 28/ 04
01/ 28/ 04

01/ 30/ 04

REPRESENTATI VE(s) DAHLSTROM

Jr n- Page Action
2376 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
2376 (H JUuD
2376 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY
(H JUD AT 2:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
(H Schedul ed But Not Heard
(H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
(H Heard & Held
M NUTE( JUD)
H)

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

~

BILL: HB 357

SHORT TI TLE: RESTI TUTI ON

SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( s) SAMUELS, STOLTZE, MCGUI RE,

DAHLSTROM

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 12/ 04 2289 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 2289 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 2289 (H JUuD

01/ 12/ 04 2289 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

HOUSE JUD COWM TTEE -2- January 30, 2004



01/ 26/ 04 (H JUD AT 2:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
01/ 26/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 26/ 04 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 26/ 04 (H M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 30/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 397
SHORT TI TLE: DEFENSE CONTACTS W TH VI CTI M5 & W TNESSES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MCGUI RE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 23/ 04 2375 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 23/ 04 2375 (H JUuD

01/ 23/ 04 2375 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

01/ 26/ 04 (H JUD AT 2:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 26/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

01/ 30/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as one of the prine sponsors of
HB 348.

REX SHATTUCK, St aff

to Representative Nancy Dahl strom

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered to respond to questions on HB 398
on behal f Representative Dahl strom sponsor.

VANESSA TONDI NI, St aff

to Representative Lesil MGuire

House Judiciary Standing Conmttee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 398, testified to
the changes nade in the proposed conmmttee substitute (CS);
assisted Representative MGQuire, sponsor, with the presentation
of HB 397.

ALLEN STOREY, Li eutenant

Central O fice
Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 30, 2004



Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on proposed anendnents to HB 398.

SARA NI ELSEN, St aff

to Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions on HB 357 on behal f
of Representative Sanuels, one of the prine sponsors.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal Division

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during discussion of
HB 357.

LI NDA W LSON, Deputy Director

Publ i c Def ender Agency (PDA)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during discussion of HB
357 and suggested a change; Provided coments during discussion
of HB 397.

STEPHEN BRANCHFLOWER, Director

Ofice of Victinsg' R ghts (OVR

Al aska State Legislature

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during discussion of HB
397.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-7, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LESIL MGJIRE called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Represent ati ves
McGQuire, Anderson, Sanuels, Gara, and Guenberg were present at
the call to order.

HB 348 - NOTI CE RE OFFI CE OF VICTIMS RI GHTS

Number 0093

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 30, 2004



CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 348, "An Act relating to the rights of certain
victinse of crine to receive information about the office of
victinms' rights.” House Bill 348 has four prine sponsors:
Representatives Stoltze, Dahlstrom Samuels, and McQuire.

Number 0193

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 348, Version 23-LS1320\Q Luckhaupt,
1/28/ 04, as the working docunent. There being no objection,
Version Q was before the commttee.

Nunber 0207

REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Alaska State Legislature, one of
the prinme sponsors of HB 348, noted that Version Q has a
positive change, and that Representative Gara had suggested
adding sone extra information [regarding the Violent Crines
Conpensation Board (VCCB)] to the Ofice of Victinmse' Rights'

brochure and putting such language in the bill in the formof a
nessage from the legislature to the Ofice of Victinsg' R ghts
(OVR). Representative Stoltze tal ked about staff's alternative

suggestion to add a letter of intent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned attention to page 3, line 14 of

the bill, and said it seened to himthat if the victimis of an
age in which he/she can read, the notice should be given to the
victim as well as the parent or guardian. He suggested the

follow ng as an anendnent:

Page 3, line 14, after "shall"
I nsert "al so"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this |anguage would nake it clear
that the notice should go the victimand the parent.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he did not have an opinion on the
proposed anendnent.

Nunmber 0388

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noved to adopt the foregoing as
Amendnent 1.

Number 0411

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA objected for purposes of discussion. He
asked Representative Guenberg to consider that the anmendnent
may create an [additional step in the process] if either the
parent or the victimare not at the sane |ocation.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG clarified that it is his intent that
the notice be given to the person that is not present as soon as
possible. He said the situation may arise anytine, for exanple,
if the victimis unconscious. Representative G uenberg said he
t hought conmon sense shoul d be used.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if [the amendnent would require that
both the parent and the victim be given the notice]. He
suggested that notifying both the parent and the victim m ght be
an adm ni strative burden.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he was sure it could be dealt with
if it becane a problem He said he believed it was very
i nportant that both the parent and the victimhave the notice.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS, one of the prine sponsors of HB 348,
said a 15-year-old rape victim should know his/her rights
regardl ess of whether the parents are present. He said he was
in agreenent with Representative Guenberg that it would help a
young victimto understand his/her rights.

CHAIR McGQUIRE, one of the prime sponsors of HB 348, surm sed
that Anendnent 1 would require that both the victim and the

parent be given the notice. If either the victim or parent is
not present during the process, the notice would be provided to
the absent party through first class nmail. She said the

intention is not for the notification to be a burden, but the
committee feels it is appropriate that both parties be notified.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA renoved his objection.

Nunber 0572

CHAIR McGQU RE asked if there was any further objection to the
notion to adopt Anendnent 1. There being no objection
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Number 0600

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Anendnent 2, [23-LS1320\H. 2,
Luckhaupt, 1/30/04] which read:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 30, 2004



Page 1, line 2, followng "rights":
Insert "and the Violent Crinmes Conpensation
Boar d"

Page 3, following line 17:

Insert new bill sections to read:

"* Sec. 2. AS 24.65.100 is anmended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(d) The victinms' advocate shall provide witten
material to be given out to victinse of crinme as
required by AS 12.61.010. The witten material nust
contain a brief statenent about conpensation avail able
fromthe Violent Crimes Conpensation Board and contact
information for that board.

* Sec. 3. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anmended by adding a new section to read:

APPLI CABI LITY OF SECTION 2 OF TH S ACT. Section
2 of this Act requires the victins' advocate to
include wthin brochures or other witten material to
be given to certain crine victins information about
conpensation available from the Violent Crines
Conpensati on Board. This requirenent applies only to
brochures or other witten material printed after the
effective date of this Act. The victins' advocate nmay
continue to supply brochures or other witten materi al
printed before the effective date of this Act until
t hose brochures or materials are exhausted.”

Number 0617

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he wanted to include information in the
OVR' s brochure that specifies that there is also a Violent
Cri mes Conpensati on Board.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggest ed anendi ng Anendnent 2, as foll ows:

Li ne 9,
Del et e "conpensation avail able front

[ Although there was no further discussion on this point, this
anendnent to Anendnment 2 was treated as adopted.]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he |iked the idea of the |anguage
"conpensation available front because it is possible that
certain crimes are conpensable even if others are not.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that determning whether a crine was

conpensable would require a "legal call" by the person handing
out the panphlets and [it is not his intention] to nake the
person providing the information an expert in this area. He

said he wanted to put as mninmal a requirenent as possible upon
the OVR to include a very brief statement in its brochure that
the VCCB exists and include the contact information. He said he
crossed out the extra words because he didn't want to make the
statenent nore than a couple of sentences if the [OVR] feels
that is all that will fit in a brochure. Representative Gara
expressed frustration about the length of Amendnent 2, and said
if the OVR wants to nmake the information nore elaborate, that
woul d be great, but he wanted to give the OVR that discretion.
He noted that the reason that he wanted to add an anmendnent
rather than a letter of intent is because with a letter of
intent, the statenents of purpose disappear very shortly after
the law is passed. He indicated that the successor to the
current director of the OVR mght not see the [letter of
intent].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA again noved to adopt Anendnent 2 [as
anended] .

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE noted that conpensation doesn't get
di scussed until there is an adjudication of guilt or innocence,
and that's really far down the Iine. He said there is not a
presunption that there is a conpensation that early in the
process.

Nunmber 0860

CHAIR MGURE indicated her hope that just Section 2 [of
Amendrment 2] would renain; although, she added, Section 3 of
Amendnent 2 is needed to explain that there is no liability.
She surmsed that generally, applicability provisions do not
show up in future statutes, and nentioned that the OVR m ght be
reprinting its brochure in March anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA agreed that Section 3 wll disappear. He

explained that the uncodified laws will show up in the session
| aws next year but wll never show up in the statute books

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- January 30, 2004



af terward. He said he shared nenbers' frustration because he
t hought the anendnent could be a |ot shorter than what canme back
from[the drafter].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Section 3 of Amendment 2 could
be done as a letter of intent, adding that because the commttee
is doing a letter of intent anyway, if Representative Gara would
renove Section 3 from Amendnent 2, when the committee takes up
the letter of intent, Section 3's |anguage can be added to it.

CHAIR McGU RE said Section 2 supercedes the letter of intent
that the commttee currently has, so the new letter of intent
could actually be the concept contained in Section 3 [of
Amendnent 2] .

Number 0955

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to anmend Anmendnent 2 by deleting
Section 3. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CHAIR McGQU RE asked if there was objection [to the notion to
adopt Anendnent 2, as anended]. There being none, Anmendnent 2,
as anended, was adopt ed.

Number 1011

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report the proposed CS for HB
348 [Version 23-1LS1320\Q Luckhaupt, 1/28/04], as anended, out
of conmmttee [with i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng zero fiscal notes]. There being no objection, CSHB
348(JUD) was reported from the House Judiciary Standing
Commi ttee.

CHAIR MGU RE turned attention to the original letter of intent,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

It IS t he i nt ent of the Al aska House of
Representatives that the Ofice of Victinmls Rights
provide contact information for the Violent Crines
Conpensation Board on their informational brochure
offered to the public.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that the new letter of intent
woul d read:

APPLI CABI LITY OF SECTION 2 OF TH S ACT. Section 2 of
this Act requires the victins' advocate to include

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- January 30, 2004



within brochures or other witten material to be given
to certain crinme victins i nformation about
conpensation available from the Violent Crines
Conpensati on Board. This requirenent applies only to
brochures or other witten material printed after the
effective date of this Act. The victins' advocate may
continue to supply brochures or other witten materi al
printed before the effective date of this Act until
t hose brochures or material s are exhaust ed.

Number 1093

CHAIR McGQUI RE asked if there was any objection to reporting the
new letter of intent CSHB 348(JUD). There being no objection,
the letter of intent for CSHB 348(JUD) was reported from the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the House Judiciary
Standing Commttee provide a zero fiscal note specifying the
conmmittee's intention that the state does not spend any noney on
HB 348.

CHAIR McGQUIRE, in response, said the commttee would [create a
zero fiscal note].

[CSHB 348(JUD) was reported from the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee.]

HB 398 - DOVESTI C VI OLENCE FATALI TY REVI EW TEAM

Nunber 1175

CHAI R Mc@GU RE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 398, "An Act relating to donestic violence
fatality review teans."” [In nmenbers' packets was a proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 398, Version 23-LS1321\I,
Luckhaupt, 1/29/04.]

Number 1181

REX SHATTUCK, Staff to Representative Nancy Dahlstrom Al aska
State Legislature, sponsor, offered to respond to questions on
behal f of Representative Dahlstrom He said the commttee was
thorough in | ooking at the bill during the previous neeting.

Nunber 1191

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- January 30, 2004



VANESSA TONDI NI, Staff to Representative Lesil MGQuire, House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee, Alaska State Legislature, began
di scussion of the anendnents adopted during the neeting on
1/ 28/ 04. Turning to Version |, she pointed out that inclusion
of the language "or earlier”™ on page 1, line 10, creates sort of
a di screpancy because it may be contradictory to specifying that
a review team can only be started once a case has been conpl eted
or adj udi cat ed.

M5. TONDINI explained that although one of the anendnents
adopted at the bill's prior neeting added a definition section
for the purpose of defining donestic violence, this change does
not appear in Version | because donestic violence as defined in
AS 18. 66.990 al ready appli es.

M5. TONDINI turned attention to the page 2, lines 7-8, of
Version |, and noted that it provides that "serious physical
injury"” has the neaning given in AS 11.81.900, so Version | does
not contain a separate definitions section. She indicated that
the other anendnents adopted on 1/28/ 04 have been incorporated
into Version |

M5. TONDINI rem nded nenbers that at the neeting on 1/28/04,
Representative G uenberg posed a few technical questions to the
drafters. She turned attention to page 3, line 2, of Version I
specifically the |language "or" followng "teant, and said [the
drafters] decided to |eave the |anguage as "or" and the sponsor
agreed. M. Tondini, in conclusion, turned attention to page 3,
line 13, of the original bill and explained that the |anguage
"danage" was changed to "danages".

Nunber 1381

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noved to adopt the proposed CS for HB
398, Version 23-LS1321\1|, Luckhaupt, 1/29/04, as the work draft.
There being no objection, Version | was before the committee.

MR, SHATTUCK turned attention to page 1, line 10, and expressed
concerns about the |anguage "or earlier"; he said the sponsor
woul d prefer to [delete the |language] "or earlier"” because it
was felt that it would inpact cases that perhaps were "in play".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it is his belief that it is a good
idea to have "or earlier” included in the |anguage because it
gives discretion to the conmmssioner or the person in the
municipality to do it earlier if he/she wanted to. He said he
couldn't foresee a situation off hand that it would invol ve, but

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- January 30, 2004



his gut feeling is that there could be such a situation. He
remarked, "It's a chicken soup anendnent,"” and suggested that
[law enforcenent] obviously would not do anything to "screw up”
the investigation. He said he thought it was very clear that
[the conmittee] is not authorizing that. He also said he woul d
hate to see [l aw enforcenment] "hanstrung”" from the investigation
because [investigators] may think they may get a witness at sone
future date and technically it is not put in the closed files.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he tends to agree with elimnating
the |anguage because, in an ongoing investigation, an
i nvestigator can't coment on the case at all. He said that in
a high publicity case there may be political pressure on
[officials] to convene [a donestic violence fatality review
team because of the facts of the crinme, but |[because the
investigation is ongoing] the district attorney can't talk about
the case. He remarked that al t hough he  under st ood
Representative Guenberg's point, he didn't want to run into
situation in which sonebody convenes [a donestic violence
fatality review teaml to |look good but people can't be
conpletely forthcom ng.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG suggested that [law enforcenent
officials] are going to be bright, educated, sophisticated, very
highly trained people, and he didn't want to see them prevented
from doing sonething [involving] an old case. He explained that
sonme nurder [cases] can go on forever and never be solved, and
those are the kinds of cases that have a problem which could be
addressed via HB 398. Wthout "or earlier"” renmaining, he said,
he is afraid that exactly the opposite will occur.

Nunmber 1565

ALLEN STOREY, Lieutenant, Central Ofice, Dvision of Al aska
State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), testified
that if [the conmssioner] wanted to [convene a donestic
violence fatality review team before final adjudication, then
maybe such could be qualified via wuse of, "an earlier
appropriate tine" or sonmething along that 1ine. He said he
could see that there may be an incident in which it would be
necessary to review the process at an earlier tine, but he could
also see that it could create conflicts in the course of an
investigation if done at an inappropriate tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that suggestion would work for
hi m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- January 30, 2004



VR. SHATTUCK said the sponsor would agree wth that
[ suggesti on].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he didn't want to |ose sight of the
pur pose of the donestic violence fatality review team which is
to figure out how sonebody ended up becoming a victim and where

the system fail ed. He said once the information needed to
review a case is [conplete], the donestic violence fatality
review team will act responsibly and indicate that it is the
time to investigate it. He said sonetines there is the problem

in that a case doesn't get adjudicated because an issue goes up
on appeal, and one would not want to nake the donestic violence
fatality review team wait when it should just figure out what
went wong and why the victim becane victim zed. He said this
is one of those statutes that no matter how it is witten there
woul d be uni ntended consequences one way or the other, and even
though there mght be that tinme when the donestic violence
fatality review team would be inproperly convened, he would be
willing to take that risk. Representative Gara said the earlier
suggested discretion is sonmething that should be given to [the
conveni ng authority].

CHAIR MGU RE surmi sed that the drafters are saying that adding,
"or earlier" renders, "has been conpleted or adjudicated by |aw
enforcenment” irrel evant. She indicated a preference for not
including "or earlier".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thought, "or earlier” s
i nportant because nornmally one would want to wait until the
i nvestigation is conpleted.

CHAIR MGQU RE said it would be fine with her to do sonething
along the lines of what Lieutenant Storey suggested, but didn't
know who would determ ne when it would be appropriate and when
it wouldn't.

Nunber 1719

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS suggested anending the |anguage on page
1, line 10, to do exactly as Lieutenant Storey said by deleting
the word "earlier", so it wuld read "or at an earlier
appropriate tinme". He remarked, "Generally speaking, you' d wait
until the adjudication was finished, but you could nake
determ nations and not be willing to give the other ... folks

sone benefit of the doubt."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he thought the person to determ ne
that point would be the convening authority. He stated that he
was in support of the anmendnent.

Nunber 1759

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS noved to adopt Amendnent 1, to make page
1, line 10, read as follows: "conpl eted or adjudicated by |aw
enforcenent or at an wearlier appropriate tinme, a donestic
violence fatality". There being no objection, Amendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

Nunber 1774

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noved to adopt Anmendnent 2, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

pg. 1, Line 7 after state Insert: for which the
Departnment of Public Safety has primary responsibility
for providing police services.

Number 1781
CHAI R MGUI RE obj ected for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said Anendnent 2 canme from the sponsor's
office. He explained that at the previous neeting the conmttee
had di scussed wanting to ensure that sonebody had the authority
W thout getting into a "turf battle" between a city or a
muni ci pality and DPS.

MR. SHATTUCK said the sponsor would prefer not to offer that
anendnent from[DPS] at this particular tine.

Nunmber 1803

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS wi t hdrew Anendnent 2.

Number 1809

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noved to report the proposed CS for HB
398, [Version 23-LS1321\1, Luckhaupt, 1/29/04], as anended, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

398(JUD) was reported fromconmttee.

HB 357 - RESTI TUTI ON

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- January 30, 2004



Nunmber 1847

CHAI R Mc@U RE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 357, "An Act relating to restitution; and

providing for an effective date.” House Bill 357 has four prine
sponsors: Representatives Stoltze, Dahlstrom Samuels, and
McQui re. [Before the conmittee was the proposed conmttee

substitute (CS) for HB 357, Version 23-LS1384\D, Luckhaupt,
1/ 20/ 04, which was adopted as a work draft on 1/26/04.]

Nunmber 1853

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noved adopt the proposed CS for HB 357
| abel ed 23-LS1384\H, Luckhaupt, 1/29/04 as the work draft.
There being no objection Version H was before the conmttee.

Nunmber 1860

SARA NI ELSEN, Staff to Representative Ralph Sanuels, Al aska
State Legislature, spoke on behalf of Representative Sanuels,
one of the prine sponsors of HB 357, regarding the changes
incorporated into the CS. She explained that Section 5 of
Version D was totally renoved. This was the section that
clarified that a mnor should remain [accountable] for
restitution past age 19. Because this is already the |aw, she
remar ked, Section 5 of Version D seenmed to conplicate the issue
rather than clarify it, and so the | anguage was renoved.

M5. NI ELSEN turned attention to page 1, line 4, and page 1, line
10, which now contain the |anguage "unless the victim or other
person expressly declines restitution”; this |anguage is
intended to address a scenario in which a victim sinply doesn't
want restitution for whatever reason, for exanple, if the victim
woul d rather have the offender go to alcohol treatnent instead
of paying restitution. She turned attention to page 2, lines
15-19, and said this new Section 4 was added so that a defendant
would be able to conme forward at any time and pay his/her

restitution. Thus, if that person had been ordered to pay
restitution but was meking a paynent that was not part of the
paynent schedul e, the court should still accept the noney.

M5. NI ELSEN turned attention to the fourth change, page 2, line
31 [through page 3, line 1], and she said the follow ng | anguage
was added: "The court may not reduce an order of restitution
but nay change the paynent schedule.” She said this is sort of

a conpromse to earlier versions' repeal of AS 12.55.045(f).

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- January 30, 2004



She noted that Representative G uenberg was concerned that the
court wasn't taking into consideration the ability to pay; this
addi ti onal | anguage sinply gives a defendant [who is
experiencing financial difficulties the opportunity to pay
restitution at a later tine].

IVS. Nl ELSEN turned attention to page 3, lines 2-7, the
del i nquent mnor section, which [mrrors] what was done in the
adult section to allow the court to accept [a restitution]
paynment at anyti ne.

Nunber 1970

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he supports the |anguage on page
2, line 31, through page 3, line 1, which proposes to change
Title 12. He pondered whether that kind of |anguage could also
be put in Title 47 regarding delinquency. He said the commttee
allowed the court to do a paynent schedule for adults but it had
not done that for juvenile delinquents. Representati ve
Gruenberg said the two statutes track each other, one is for the
adults and the other is for the delinquents, and there may be
sonething already in the delinquency statute, but he wanted that
to be investigated and, if appropriate, add that sentence.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS turned attention to page 3, line 1, and
suggested adding the words, "unless specifically requested by
the victint to address situations in which a victim requests
that a restitution order be dropped.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG warned Representative Samuels to be
careful that such | anguage is properly drafted.

M5. NELSEN, on the question of whether HB 357 could be
chal l enged on a constitutional basis, said she had checked with
the Departnent of Law (DOL), which relayed that there shoul dn't
be any such chal |l enges].

Number 2115

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noved to adopt [Anmendnent 1], which he
said would stipulate that if the victim chooses, he/she would be
able to drop the order of restitution.

Number 2125

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG objected for purposes of discussion.
He asked that Anendnent 1 be clarified.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS expl ai ned t hat Amendnment 1 woul d be:

Page 2, line 31, after "restitution”
| nsert ", unl ess specifically requested by the
victim"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved hi s objection.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if it is possible for a victimto
be threatened or coerced into dropping a restitution order
agai nst his/her wll.

Number 2174

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Legal Services
Section-Juneau, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law (DOL), said
that she had never seen that situation arise, but could
certainly imgine that scenario if a [defendant] is under a | ot
of stress with a high restitution paynent and tries to put
pressure on the victim

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG said that in donestic violence
situations, a lot of times [an offender] wll pressure the
victimto drop the charge. He offered a hypothetical situation
in which a victimis given the choice by her abusive ex-husband
of either dropping the restitution order against him or having
to fight himfor custody of their child.

Number 2240
REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS wi t hdrew Anendnent 1

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there is other |anguage in the
bill simlar to that in Anendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS i ndi cated that there is.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Representative Samuels if he
wanted to renove such | anguage fromthe bill

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said no, because there m ght be
situations in which the victimdoes not want restitution.

CHAIR McGU RE, one of the prine sponsors of HB 357, indicated

that if the language is renoved it mght [create unintended
consequences.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA said it can be very expensive and tine
consunmng to prove restitution. He said sonetines there are
victinse who do not want to be involved in the court process, so
there will be certainly be cases in which the court, prosecutor

and defense attorney spend tine calculating and ordering a full
restitution amunt when the victim really doesn't care. He
expl ained that [language] on page 1 requires restitution to be
ordered unless the victim expressly declines. However, he said
it doesn't address the circunstance in which the case doesn't go

to trial, the victim never shows up, and the victim never
expresses whether he/she wants restitution, but the bill is
requiring a full hearing and litigation over the restitution
anount . He said maybe it is not a bad thing that a victim get

restitution even if he/she doesn't want it or <care, but he
expressed concern about spending the noney to require the scarce
resources of the judicial systemto create the restitution order
if the victimdoesn't care.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he would assunme that if there is
noney involved, then nost victins are going to want it if

they've suffered a financial |oss. He acknow edged, though,
that there may be a small nunber of victins that aren't going to
follow through at least a Ilittle bit on the issue of
restitution. He offered the scenario in which a kid goes
t hrough a nei ghborhood and shoots out 40 car w ndows, and said
that even if the [victin] doesn't want to go to court, all it

takes is a phone call from the district attorney to tell that
victim that he/she has restitution com ng. He opined that even

t hough the victim m ght not have cared, he/she would still take
the restitution. Representative Sanmuels said that to himit is
about fairness, and that is the [purpose] of the bill - to try

to make people responsible for their actions.

TAPE 04-7, SIDE B
Number 2394

M5. CARPENETI relayed that victins are contacted and asked for
evi dence of restitution.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether, if there was a court order
that asked the victimfor receipts, but the victimhadn't handed
them in or told what the danmges are, the bill says a full
restitution hearing nust be nmade even wthout evidence of
restitution. He asked if the court is obligated to figure out
the restitution without the victims help.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- January 30, 2004



M5. CARPENETI said that practically, that's not how it would
wor K. She surmised that there would be a restitution hearing
and the court would ask for evidence of restitution, but if
there isn't evidence, the court would say the victimhas a right
to restitution, but does not have to exercise that right.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pointed out, however, that [proposed AS
12.55.045(a)(1)] says the «court shall, wunless the wvictim
expressly says no, order restitution. He said the court would
be in violation of the law if it ignored the |anguage in the
bill.

M5. CARPENETI speculated that the court would sinply say that
the restitution had been expressly declined.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggested changing the wording of [proposed
AS 12.55.045(a)(1), lines 4-5, to read, "The court shall, if
presented with conpetent evidence, order restitution".

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS gave an exanple of a broken w ndshield,
and asked whether, if there is no receipt given, there is no
restitution.

Number 2301

M5. CARPENETI agreed that if there are no clains or receipts
presented by the victim then there is no restitution ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS obj ected [to the suggested change].

REPRESENTATIVE GARA said he disagrees wth Representative
Samuel s and Ms. Carpeneti, opining that if the law says the
court has to order restitution, then the court has to order
restitution, whether it is practical or not.

CHAIR MGUIRE said she did not |ike the word, "conpetent," but
agreed with the rest of the wording of the anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said he did not want to put a further
burden on the victimby using the term "conpetent evidence."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested using, "If presented with
sufficient evidence."

CHAIR McGUI RE suggested just using "evidence", not "sufficient”
or "conpetent."”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- January 30, 2004



MS. CARPENETI said she thought that using just "evidence" would
be fine.

Number 2196
CHAIR MGUI RE noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 2, as follows:

Page 1, line 4
After shal
I nsert "when presented with evidence"

CHAIR McGQUIRE noted that there are other areas of the bill that
woul d need conform ng anendnents; for exanple, page 1, line 9.
She indicated that the intent of Conceptual Anendnment 2 is to
allow the drafter to make the necessary conform ng changes.

Nunmber 2163

CHAIR MGU RE asked whether there were any objections to
Conceptual Anmendnent 2. There being none, Conceptual Anmendnent
2 was adopt ed.

Nunber 2150

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS spoke about Conceptual Anendnent 3 which
reads [original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 47.12.120 Judgnents and orders

(4) order the mnor and mnor's parent to nake
suitable restitution in lieu of or in addition to the
court's order under (1), (2) or (3) of this
subsection; under this paragraph,
(A) except as provided in (B) of this paragraph,
the court may not refuse to nmke an order of
restitution to benefit the victim of the act of
the mnor that is the basis of the delinquency
adj udi cation;. ..

New secti on:

The court may take into consideration the delinquent
mnor's ability to pay past age 19, or the age in
which the court retains jurisdiction over the mnor,
when determning the anount of the order of
restitution.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS expl ai ned Conceptual Anmendnment 3 would
allow the court to take into consideration [the dependant’s]

ability to pay when between the ages of 17 and 19. It states
that the court my Ilook at [a mnor's] ability to pay
[restitution] later on in life. He enphasi zed that Conceptua

Amendnent 3 contains the word "may", thus the court would not be
mandated to [consider this point].

Nunber 2082
REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 3.
Number 2078

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for discussion purposes. He
said he does not want to limt the age to 19. Rather, he wants
to give the court the discretion to spread the paynents out,
regardl ess of the age of the juvenile.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS said his intent is to get rid of the
artificial barrier of age, and referred the | anguage | abeled
"New Section", which says, "past age 19." He said sonetines the
jurisdiction of the court goes to age 21, and agreed that there
shoul d be a paynent schedul e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he supported the idea [of renoving
age restrictions], but gave an exanple of a 13 year-old who has
caused $1,000 worth of damage. The court my say to nake
paynments which mght end before the mnor is 19. He said he
woul d i ke to see that situation addressed as well.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said if the paynent schedule was
i ncl uded, the problem would be addressed. The reason it says,
"may" is for just such cases involving younger Kkids.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he understood the neaning to be,
"it can be a series of paynents, and it can extend past the age
of mpjority." He indicated that he wanted to see the bill wth
the inclusion of Conceptual Amendnment 3 before noving it from
commttee. He then withdrew his objection.

Nunber 1987
CHAIR MGQU RE asked if there were any further objections to

Conceptual Anmendnent 3. There being none, Conceptual Amendnent
3 was adopt ed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE  GARA requested V5. Car penet i respond to

constitutional issues. He said he wants see that the bill
orders as much restitution as possible, wi t hout bei ng
unconstitutional . He asked if a violation of a restitution

order counted as a violation of probation.
M5. CARPENETI replied that it did.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that if probation is violated, [the
defendant] can be put in jail for the remainder of the origina
sentence. He asked if that statenment is correct.

M5. CARPENETI replied that it is.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA sai d, t hen, that there could be a
circunstance where a person was recklessly driving, had no
insurance, and injured a famly causing $1,000,000 worth of
damages. He said there is no likelihood that the defendant
could come up with that anount. Therefore, if restitution of
the full anobunt is ordered by the court, and the defendant gets
out of jail and is unable to make all of the paynents, he/she
will be thrown in jail because of a violation of the restitution
or der. He asked if there was a possible due process problemin
t hat situation.

M5. CARPENETI replied that there is no debtor's prison in the
U.S., but noted that AS 12.55.051(a) specifically addresses the
pr obl em If a probation violation is only because of a |ack of
paynment of restitution and the defendant shows that he/she
cannot pay, they cannot be inprisoned.

Nunber 1872

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he was conforted by [the statute] but
wanted to nake sure that HB 357 would not conflict with it.

V5. CARPENETI asked if he is worried about the |anguage, "shal
pay restitution.”

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he is worried that if [the bill] were
passed, that it would conflict with [a statute] on the books.

M5. CARPENETI said she did not see a conflict because the
constitution says a victimhas the right to restitution and this
bill says [the wvictim has the right to the order of
restitution.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA nment i oned Sout her | and Statutory
Construction, which he described as a legal treatise that deals
with conflicting statutes. He cautioned that the conmttee stay
within this treatise's rules, adding that sonetines when there
are two conflicting statutes, the later one supercedes the
earlier one, which is invalidated. He surm sed that such is not
the bill's intention, and suggested that this idea should be
stated sonewhere [in the bill], and asked Ms. Carpeneti whether
she agreed.

M5. CARPENETI replied that stating the intent in this public
hearing, which is being recorded, is probably [sufficient].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he didn't think that people would rely
on what is said in this hearing.

M5. CARPENETI stated again that she did not see a problem  She
said she thought it was clear [in the bill] that a procedure
needed to be foll owed; whatever is ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS pointed out that the victim has the
constitutional right to restitution.

Number 1718

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that when the |egislature passes a
| aw and doesn't specifically affect other statutes, the court
will construe them harnmoniously and will find that the prior
statute survives. He said he agrees with M. Carpeneti's
i nterpretation.

CHAIR McGUI RE opined that there has been sufficient discussion

on the record regarding this issue to show that this bill does
not nean to supercede AS 12.55.501(a). She pointed out that
Representative Sanuels is correct [regarding the right to
restitution]; Article |, Section 24, of the A aska State

Constitution says that crinme victins have the right to
restitution fromthe accused.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to Section 3, page 2, lines 12-
14, and noted that the court may order a paynent schedul e. He
asked if it is correct that in considering the paynent schedul e,
the court could consider the defendant's ability to pay.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said that is the intent.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that with that clarification he
woul d decline to of fer an anendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he was going to vote for the bill, but
added that nost attorneys do not |ook up legislative history,
especially in crimnal cases.

Number 1587

LI NDA WLSON, Deputy Director, Public Defender Agency (PDA),
Department of Admi nistration (DOA), thanked the sponsors of the
bill for the changes to it. She then suggested additional
wording, "at the request of the victim" to show that the
victinms are exercising their right to the restitution. She said
she really appreciates the renoval of the section that applied
to juvenile court jurisdiction. She explained that when a
petition to revoke probation is filed, and the person conmes into
court and denonstrates that the inability to pay was not wlfu

because he/she could not meke the paynents, then they get put
back on probation and are put on a nore doable paynent

schedul e. . Her point, however, is that a whole new hearing has
to be schedul ed because of not considering in the first place
the defendant's ability to pay. In conclusion, she opined that

t he amendnents have been a big inprovenent to the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if M. WIson had any other
changes to suggest that hadn't been di scussed yet.

M5. WLSON suggested that on page 1, line 4, instead of saying,
"unless the wvictim or ot her person expressly declines
restitution," replace it wth, "shall at the request of the
victim".

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he was not in favor of that [change]
because of the burden it puts on the victimto appear in court.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wasn't suggesting that the
victimgo to court, but rather that he/she sinply signs a piece
of paper.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS indicated that he still objects to the
suggest ed change.

CHAI R M@UJ RE asked whether there was further discussion on the
bill. Hearing none, she asked for a notion.

Number 1343

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- January 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved [to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 357, Version 23-LS1384\H, Luckhaupt,
1/ 29/ 04, as anmended, from commttee W th i ndi vi dua
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes]. There being
no objection, CSHB 357(JUD) was reported from the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conm ttee.

HB 397 - DEFENSE CONTACTS WTH VI CTI M5 & W TNESSES

Nunmber 1306

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 397, "An Act relating to defense contacts with
and recordings of statenents of victinmse or wtnesses; and
anendi ng Rule 16, Al aska Rules of Crimnal Procedure.”

CHAIR McGU RE, speaking sponsor of HB 397, explained that she
was contacted by a constituent whose 16-year-old daughter was
raped. The girl told her parents, the investigation was begun

and charges were fil ed. Wiile hone alone, the girl received a
phone call from the perpetrator's defense attorney who asked if
she would be wlling to talk to him Agreeing to drive down to
the public defender's office before her parents got honme, the
girl believed that she would be |earning about case devel opnents
during the neeting and wanted to give her side of the story.
Al t hough  her parents were not i ncl uded, nor asked to
participate, the public defender recorded the girl's statenents,
sone of which were ultimately used against her. Later, when her
parents found out about this, they filed a claim against the
Publ i c Defender Agency (PDA) because it was their understanding
that there had to be parental consent before questioning.

CHAIR McGQUIRE said she thought there was a |oophole, in that
recorded statenments are treated differently than unrecorded
st at enent s. She said that HB 397 would change the law to
require parental consent before a mnor speaks with a defense
investigator or defense attorney. It allows a parent or
guardian to obtain a transcript of the recorded statenents nade
by the mnor victim or wtness. She said the bill has an
i nportant exenption in that if the victims parent or guardian
is the defendant, the victim would not have to obtain parental
consent .

CHAIR M @UJ RE noted that one draft version of the bill addressed

only the [aforenentioned] "l|oophole.”™ However, while working on
the bill, the drafters noticed inconsistencies in [other]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- January 30, 2004



sections of statute, so HB 397 now also deals wth those

i nconsi stenci es. Mentioning that there may not be enough votes
in the Senate to pass the bill's proposed court rule change, she
indicated that at the very l|east, she wants to get the bill's

intent into | aw
Nunmber 0943

VANESSA TONDI NI, Staff to Representative Lesil MQuire, House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee, Alaska State Legislature, relayed,
on behalf of Chair MQ@ire, sponsor, that HB 397 anends AS
12.61.120(b), AS 12.61.120(c), AS 12.61.120(d), and AS
12.61.120(e). She pointed out that in alnost all other areas of
the law where mnors' rights are an issue, a juvenile is

normal |y deenmed not conpetent to waive those rights. She said
the changes to [AS 12.61.120] are consistent with Al aska' s |aws
and policies. Upon adding the additional step that the defense

team would have to go through in order to contact the mnor
victimor witness, the drafters felt that an indirect court rule
anmendnent should be included in the bill as a safeguard. She
remarked that the intent of the bill's current |anguage is to
make all sections pertaining to this issue conform ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA opi ned that what Chair McGQuire is calling a

| oophole is sinply a policy choice. He suggested that the
reason why current law says that if the statenent is recorded
then parental consent is not needed, is to avoid the

ci rcunst ance where soneone tricks a mnor into [testifying], and
there is no tape or record of it. A prior legislature said that
if there is a recording, it is possible to tell whether there is
any untoward conduct going on. He explained, if parental
consent is required, the defense investigator has to go back two
or three tines to be [present] at the sane place that the parent
and victim are together. He said HB 397 is going to require
nore investigative work [on the defense's part], adding that he
wants the playing field to be Ilevel. He asked whether a
different rule was being adopted for the defense than for the
prosecution, or whether the rule would be the sane. I n other
words, if the investigator for the defense now has to get
consent from the parent, does the sanme rule apply for the
prosecution.

M5. TONDINI opined that the current policy and purpose behind
these statutes assumes that victins and witnesses are at risk of
harassnent, intimdation, and invasion of privacy when they are
unwi I lingly thrust into the legal system These potential harns
increase drastically when the victimis a mnor, she said. She

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- January 30, 2004



went on to say that AS 12.61.120(b) deals with situations where
the defendant is proceeding wthout counsel and is deened to be
dangerous and poses a threat to the victim or wtness. The
court wll protect the address and telephone nunber [of the
victimor witness] by providing it to a third party who acts as
the defendant's representative in contacting the wvictim or
W t ness. If the wvictim or wtness is a mnor, [the
representative] must go through the parent.

M5. TONDINI noted that Section 3 specifies that if the victimor
witness is a mnor, [the defendant or defending attorney] nust
al so obtain permssion from the parent to contact the victim or

W t ness. Notification of the rights of the victim or wtness
must also be given to the parents. She said that proposed AS
12.61.120(d) changes the requirenment that if the statement is
bei ng recorded, parental consent is required. The bill says, in
proposed AS 12.61.120(e), the parent or guardian nmay obtain the
transcript of the recording. She explained that Section 6

states that if the defendant is the parent or guardian, the
def endant doesn't have the appropriate authority to provide the
consent.

Nunmber 0378

LI NDA WLSON, Deputy Director, Public Defender Agency (PDA),
Depart nent of Adm ni stration (D) , sai d t here IS a
constitutional provision that says to treat all wtnesses wth
fairness and dignity. She said that the question of fairness
toward crimnal defense investigators needs to be |ooked at
because this bill does not apply to police investigators, who

are not required to get the consent of a parent before they
interrogate or question a mnor witness or alleged victim nor

is a civil investigator required to do so. The bill is singling
out crimnal defense investigators and would inpair legitimte
investigative efforts. She said those efforts go to providing

the defendant with his/her constitutionally mandated right of
effective assistance from counsel .

IVB. WLSON noted t hat t he statute requiring witten
aut horization for a non-recorded statenent is in AS 12.61.125,
which is not nentioned in HB 397 at all. That section's
specific purpose is related to victinse and w tnesses of sexual
of fenses, and the exanple that Chair MQiire gave was a case of
an alleged sexual offense, M. WIlson said, adding that AS
12.61.120 says nothing, «currently, about requiring a non-
recorded statenent to have parental consent.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- January 30, 2004



M5. WLSON explained that when one has a defense investigator
doing a legitimte investigative effort, it is another search
for the truth. Wen good work is done by the defense team it
often results in flushing out relevant facts in a case. Those
facts can ultimately resolve the case, short of trial, either
because all of the problenms have been resolved, or possible
def enses have been found. There may be a situation where, the
first time the witness is allowed to be questioned by the
defense team is at trial. More cases may go to trial if there
are |less opportunities and nore barriers to the ability of the
defense investigators to do the work they need to do.

M5. WLSON said the focus of the bill seenms to be from the
perspective of the sex offense case, so it is possible that this
could be limted to sinply changing AS 12.61.125. It would be

an easy fix to apply the requirenent for witten authorization
fromthe victimor wtness, whether [the testinony is] recorded
or not recorded, she said, adding that it could be expanded to
every case dealing with wtnesses. There are concerns wth
ol der teens getting witten or specific consent from a parent.
There is going to be nore investigative evidence required by the
def ense. The bill is singling out the crimnal investigators,
she said, noting that it this does not just say "notify", it
says, "get their consent".

TAPE 04-8, SIDE A
Number 0001

M5. WLSON concluded by remarking that under HB 397, police
still wouldn't have to get the consent of the parents even
t hough the defense woul d. She said she is not sure that that's
very fair.

CHAI R McGU RE expl ained that although the aforenentioned sexua
assault case was what pronpted her to |ook at the current
statutes regarding parental notification, the intent was to have
HB 397 apply to nore than just sexual assault cases.

Nunmber 0058

STEPHEN BRANCHFLOWER, Director, Ofice of Victinms' Rights (OVR),
Al aska State Legislature, turned to sone of the issues raised
earlier in the discussion. Regarding the phrase, the search for
the truth, he suggested that the nmeaning of that phrase could be
debated at |ength because what the truth is to the defense is
oftentinmes far different than what the truth is to [the
prosecution]. He el aborat ed:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- January 30, 2004



|"ve heard judges ... [remark that] the crimnal
justice nmachine does not provide a level playing
field. And | agree with that, but | have to qualify
that by saying that the reason it's not a |evel
playing field is [that] in many respects, the crimnal
justice system favors the defendant agai nst the state.

So it's not level; not because the state has the
advantage, ... [but] because the defense has the
advant age. Let nme give you sonme exanples. ... In
response to Representative Gara's inquiry about
whether or not we had ... different standards for
police and defendants, the answer is yes, of course we
do.

But that's not a bad thing;, there are many areas in
the law that involve different standards. For
exanple, the defense starts out wth ... a clean

slate, as the judge instructs the jury, and has the
presunption of innocence. That's sonething the state
has to overcone, so the scales of justice don't start

off equally bal anced. The defendant has a Fifth
Amendnent right not to be called upon, which includes
- and it has been interpreted to include - not to

require himto share the discovery. A few years ago,
the legislature promulgated a reciprocal discovery
statute in an effort to level the playing field, so
that if the defendant wanted discovery, he would have
to provide discovery to the state to avoid surprises.
And that was declared unconstitutional.

Nunber 0201

MR. BRANCHFLOMNER conti nued:

So yes, there are different standards, but ... each
different standard, | believe, serves ... legitimte
public policy. Now, it's true that the defense has
the right to conduct their own investigation in a
crimnal case, and this bill does not inpair that.
But the truth of the matter is that the investigation
that the defense does is not anything |like the

investigation the police do, because the police start
off at ground zero. They start out in the dark; they
don't know what the facts are, they don't know who the
responsi bl e person is. By the tine the defendant is
charged, after they determne who's responsible and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- January 30, 2004



after the ... state gets involved, the public defender
has the benefit, through [the Al aska Rules of Crimna
Procedure] Rule 16, of all that discovery. They get
copies of the lab reports, ... all the police reports,
the statements, et cetera.

So when they go out to conduct an investigation, as
they did in [the Brooke] case, they are not starting
out from ground zero to find out what happened; they
are ... not necessarily trying to find, quote, "the
truth.” ... [What] they're trying to do is sustain the
burden that they have, which is the burden of creating
reasonabl e doubt . It's not proving the case beyond a
reasonabl e doubt; it's creating doubt. And the way
they do that is by obtaining a statenent, preferably
recorded, ... in order to inpeach witnesses at tria
in an effort to undermne the state's case. And when
that happens, when md-trial i npeachnent  occurs,
Wi tnesses lose credibility, and it mkes it very
difficult for 12 jurors to agree beyond a reasonable
doubt . Otentines the state is surprised, and that
can prejudice the case.

MR. BRANCHFLOWER concl uded:

Now, the bill that you have before you, all it does is
it requires parental input when the defendant or the
defense attorney wshes to obtain a recorded
st at enment . And that brings up to a level ... the
status quo regarding when the public defender or
defense investigator wshes to obtain a non-recorded
or witten interview from a m nor. It just extends
the sane protection to the same class of ... people,
whi ch are the m nors. | think it also serves another
interest, which is, it helps parents and guardi ans
| earn about what's going on in their children's lives,
and it helps them nmake smart decisions, it helps them
make deci sions that hopefully avoid bad decisions that
will have lifelong lasting effect. So yes, we do have
different standards, but | think that there are
legitimate public policies that underlie those
different standards - on both sides. Thank you.

Number 0430
M5. TONDINI, turning to an issue raised by Ms. WIson, explained
that AS 12.61.120 was anended because AS 12.61.125(2)(A) reads

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- January 30, 2004



as follows: "if the statenent is taken as a recording, the
recording is taken in conpliance with AS 12.61.120" and thus
refers back to AS 12.61.120. Therefore, AS 12.61.120 is anmended
in HB 397. She further explained that the only reason the
addition was made in this section is because the procedures with
whi ch the recording needs to conply are extensively specified in

AS 12.61.120. The desire was to ensure that those recording
procedures were also followed in cases dealing wth sexual
of f enses. "If what we're saying is parental consent is
inherently required because these mnors aren't | egal |y

conpetent to waive these rights, then we should make it clear in
the statutes and be uniform and nmake sure it applies both to
recorded and nonrecorded statenents for sexual offenses and all
of fenses,"” she clarified.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA acknow edged that he and M. Branchfl ower
disagree on this matter and remarked that the rules can't be
constructed under the assunption that all people who are charged
are qguilty. He pointed out that sonetines when things are made
easier to convict guilty people, it also nmakes it easier to
convict innocent people. The aforenentioned is the struggle
[before the legislature]. Representative Gara posed a situation
in which there is a defendant who is being wongly charged wth
a crime, who's being threatened that he/she will go to jail for
sonet hi ng t hat i ndi vi dual didn't do. Assum ng t he
af orenenti oned case, Representative Gara questioned why it's
bei ng made easier for the prosecution to prove the case agai nst
the innocent person than is being nade for the defense team to
prove that the person is innocent. He enphasi zed that it seens
the rules should be consistent. Therefore, if the investigator
for one side [is required to] obtain parental consent, so should
t he ot her side.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA suggested developing a role that protects
people in the greatest manner possible and perhaps to protect
victinms and mnors, parental consent should always be required.
He said that he didn't have a problem wth the aforenentioned,
al though he did have a problem if one side is tilted such that
one side has an easier tine proving their case than the other
side. He acknow edged that the playing field is tilted in favor
of one side in that the defendant starts with the presunption of
i nnocence, which he viewed as a good rule that he didn't want to
el i mnate. However, he said he didn't believe it's a good rule

to tilt it here. If there is a possibility that a defense
investigator will act in an abusive manner toward a mnor, then
wouldn't it also be possible that an investigator for the
prosecution will investigate the case in an abusive way toward a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -31- January 30, 2004



m nor as well. Shoul dn't one be concerned about that as well
he asked.

MR. BRANCHFLOWNER related that nost cases involving legally
i nnocent people are screened out, although he acknow edged t hat
fromtinme to tine juries do return not guilty verdicts. In the
cases with which M. Branchflower is famliar, he said those
verdicts represented a failure of proof rather than a not guilty
individual. M. Branchflower opined that it is neither workable
nor necessary to inpose the sane requirenents on police wth
regard to contacting parents because the police nost often have

the same best interest of the wtnesses, including mnor
W tnesses, as the parents do. The interests of the parents, the
victims, and the police are all in sync because all desire

hol di ng the cul pabl e person accountable. A police officer isn't
| ooking for inconsistent statements to inpeach an individual on

trial. Therefore, society, through the police, has an interest
in sustaining the burden in order to hold offenders accountable.
Society's duty to protect victinme is nmndated in the

constitution, he highlighted. M. Branchflower pointed out that
the legislature has an obligation to protect its citizens from
undue influence, which is exactly what the statute does,
especially with regard to m nors.

Number 0934

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that a [mnor fenale] has
the right to privacy of her own body wth respect to an
abortion, and therefore doesn't have to obtain parental consent.
However, [this legislation] won't let a mnor individual talk to
the defense w thout parental consent. Therefore, he questioned
whether the wtness has a constitutional right to talk to
whonever they want.

[HB 397 was hel d over.]
ADJ QURNIVENT
Number 0978

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 3:05 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -32- January 30, 2004



